OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF NEVADA

RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE ROME POWER HOUSE,
LOCATED AT 19700 PURDON ROAD, NEVADA CITY, CA 95959
(APN 032-450-004-000) AS NEVADA COUNTY HISTORICAL
LANDMARK NEV 23-01

WHEREAS, the Nevada County Historical Landmarks Commission (NCHLC) was
established in 1969 to promote the general welfare of Nevada County and its citizens through
official recognition, recording, marking, preserving, and promoting the historical resources of
Nevada County; and

WHEREAS, the NCHLC has since sustained an active program of cataloging and
recommending for designation historical sites and structures throughout Nevada County; and

WHEREAS, the NCHLC accepts applications, processes and verifies applications for
proposed historical landmark designation, and recommends said landmark designations for
approval by the Nevada County Board of Supervisors; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors supports the promotion of the public health, safety,
and general welfare by providing for the identification, protection, enhancement, perpetuation,
and use of improvements, buildings, structures, signs, objects, features, sites, places, districts, and
areas within the County that reflect special elements of the County’s architectural, artistic,
cultural, engineering, aesthetic, historical, political, social, and other heritage, by allowing their
registration as Nevada County Historical Landmarks for the following reasons:

1. Safeguarding Nevada County’s heritage as embodied and reflected in the
Rome Power House, located at 19700 Purdon Road, Nevada City (APN 032-
450-004-000), its influence on Nevada County’s cultural and social history,
and commemorating the valuable role it played in this community; and

2. Encouraging public knowledge, understanding, and appreciation of Nevada
County’s history as reflected in its heritage; and

3. Fostering civic and neighborhood pride and a sense of identity based upon the
recognition and use of cultural resources; and

4. Preserving diverse and harmonious architectural styles and design innovations;
and

5. Enhancing property values to increase economic and financial benefits to
Nevada County and its inhabitants by preserving and promoting historical
buildings; and

6. Protecting and enhancing Nevada County’s attraction to tourists and visitors,
thereby stimulating business and industry; and



7. Identifying as early as possible and resolving conflicts between the
preservation of cultural resources and alternative land uses in a section of
Nevada County that may see future population growth; and

WHEREAS, NCHLC received an application from the property owner, Michael Funk, on
February 3, 2023, requesting that the Rome Power House Site, located at 19700 Purdon Road,
Nevada City, CA 95959 (APN 032-450-004-000) be designated as a Nevada County Historical
Landmark; and

WHEREAS, at its March 17, 2023, meeting, the NCHLC verified and unanimously
approved the application and now recommends that the Board of Supervisors designate the
property as a Nevada County Historical Landmark.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of the County of
Nevada hereby accepts the NCHLC’s recommendation and designates the Rome Power House,
located at 19700 Purdon Road, Nevada City, CA 95959 (APN 032-450-004-000) as Nevada
County Historical Landmark 23-01.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the Board is hereby directed to record a
certified copy of this Resolution with the Office of the Nevada County Clerk-Recorder within ten
(10) days after the adoption hereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Nevada at a regular meeting of
said Board, held on the 25th day of April, 2023, by the following vote of said Board:

Ayes: Supervisors Heidi Hall, Edward C. Scofield, Lisa Swarthout,
Susan Hoek and Hardy Bullock.
Noes: None.

Absent:  None.

Abstain:  None.
ATTEST:

JULIE PATTERSON HUNTER
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Byd%@/madﬂ{vf/@ g&,,/g . [;ﬁ,.,é/

Edward C. Sceffeld, (ﬁir

4/25/2023 cc: Recorder(1)
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RECEIVED

Nevada County Historical Landmarks Commission

P.0. Box 1014 MAR 17 2023
~ Nevada City, California 95959 A BT
info@nev ntylandmarks.com BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

530-274-7118
17 March 2023

Nevada County Board of Supervisors
950 Maidu Avenue
Nevada City, CA 95959

Honorable Chair and Board Members:

At today's meeting, the Nevada County Historical Landmarks Commission voted
unanimously to recommend to the Board that the application for landmark designation
of The Rome Power House be approved. The applicant is Michale Funk, who owns the
site. The landmark is to be designated as Nevada County Historical Landmark NEV
23-01.

The Power House, which began operating in 1896, was the first hydroelectric
generating plant built on the South Yuba River. It initially served mines in the area, led to
the electrification of Nevada City, and helped give birth to California's hydroelectric
power industry. Its founders merged their California Gas and Electric Co. with the San
Francisco Gas and Electric Co. to create the Pacific Gas and Electric Co. in 1905.

The research and documentation which accompanies the application has been
reviewed by several Commissioner for historical accuracy. The application and
supporting documentation is enclosed.

If you approve the application, please forward the resolution and accompanying
documents to the County Recorder. If you have any further questions, do not hesitate
to contact me. Thank you in advance for your consideration of this request.

__Yours truly,
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Bernard Zimn}érm n, Chair

/
cc: Michael Funk L
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County of Nevada
State of California

Nevada County Historical Landmarks Commission
Application for Registration of Historical Landmark

Name of proposed landmark__ THE ROME POWER HOUSE

Location SOUTH YUBA RIVER BETWEEN THE HWY 49 BRIDGE AND PURDON
CROSSING. APN: 032-450-004-000

Name of applicant__ MICHAEL FUNK

Address 19700 PURDON ROAD, NEVADA CITY, CALIFORNIA 95959

Home or work phone‘ cell phone

Name and address of owner upon whose property proposed landmark

is located, if owner is not applicant

| consent to this application’ and authorize the placing of a plaque or marker
on site.
oo ) W

T e

Owner’s signature Date
MICHAEL FUNK

2022 rev.



Brief history and description of proposed landmark
(attach additional sheets as necessary)

"Pacific Gas and Electric Co. was created in October 1905, when the California Gas and Electric
Co. purchased San Francisco Gas and Electric Co. This culminated a hectic 10-year when Eugene
J. de Sabla Jr. and John Martin (In PG&E annals, called the “Fathers of PG&E”) along with
investment business partner, Romulus R. Colgate, built and acquired numerous powerhouses
and gas and electric systems in northern California.

They first built the Nevada Powerhouse, near Nevada City on the South Yuba River, which was
placed service on February 5,1896. This happened there because—
1) The many quartz gold mines in the area were hungry for cheap energy
2) The Pelton Wheel had been invented nearby and was manufactured in Nevada City and
3) Animportant catalyst was created when de Sabla, Martin, and Colgate were brought
together in a remarkable partnership.

They expanded this plant in 1897 and went on to build the Yuba Powerhouse, near Browns
Valley, in 1898, and the Colgate Powerhouse at Dobbins in 1899.

They made numerous acquisitions of other plants and gas and electric systems in northern
California. This led to the creation of the California Gas and Electric Co. in 1903, with Romulus R.

Colgate as President.

And it all started in Nevada County with the Nevada Powerhouse, or the “Rome” Powerhouse as
it was affectionately called after Mr. Colgate’s nickname.” — A Dale Johnson, 2023

Historically significant aspects or properties of proposed landmark

The Rome Power House was the first and only hydroelectric generating plant built on the South
Yuba River. Planning for the plant began in 1892. It entered service in 1896, initially serving
mines in the area. It eventually led to the electrification of Nevada City, one of the early
pioneering systems in California. Eugene J de Sable and John Martin, went on to help found
Pacific Gas and Electric and were known as the “Fathers of P. G. & E”

How will the landmark be protected and maintained?

The remains of the Rome Power House includes foundations and remnants of penstocks and
outflow piping. They are located on privately owned property situated on the South Yuba River
between the Highway 49 bridge and Purdon Crossing. The owner has a deep interest in
preserving the remains of the power plant and recognizes its importance to Nevada County

history.

2022 rev.



Bibliography. Cite or attach available books, records, articles or other
materials pertaining to the proposed landmark.
Books and articles:

Please see the attached article The Nevada “Rome” Power House — the Birthplace of PG&E. —
By A. Dale Johnson, 2008

A map of the power house location and flumes
Yuba River Power Development and the birth of PG&E timeline as prepared by A. Dale Johnson

Technical Data as prepared by A. Dale Johnson

Map showing the initial power distribution

A photo of the developers of the powerhouse, Alfonso Tregidgo and Eugene J. de Sable
Three photos of the penstocks and the powerhouse

Three photos of the construction of the powerhouse

A photo of the Excelsior diversion dam just below the powerhouse that fed the Excelsior ditch
A photo of the diversion dam near Purdon’s Crossing that fed the powerhouse

Five photos of the powerhouse from different viewpoints

A photo of the high power Pelton Wheel added to the outside of the main building

An interior photo of the power plant

The Nevada City Substation

Nevada City Historical Society article by Pat Jones published in 1969 titled: A Little Powerhouse
Called “Rome” 1895 to 1910

A photo of the Boarding House across the river from the power plant

A news article in the Union newspaper outlining the dismantling of the Rome power house
The original Prospectus for the Nevada County Electric Power Company in 1895

An early article on the Old Nevada County Electric Power Company

A photo of the founders of the power plant

Two photos of the existing remains of the Rome Power House

2022 rev.



Other: (e.g. photographs, prints or drawings. Please list and attach

separately)
SEE ATTACHED DOCUMENTS

}

" P # aw o o
T e 4 A 25 25

X,

Applicant’s signature Date
MICHAEL FUNK

This completed form and all related documents shall be sent to the:

Nevada County Historical Landmarks Commission
Attention: Chairman
P. O. Box 1014, Nevada City, Cal. 95959

Attachments and related documents may be submitted in electronic format.

An application must be considered solely on its historic or architectural
merits and not for commercial gain, political benefits, or other non historical
reasons.

An individual Commissioner can advise and counsel an applicant, but all
applications must be considered by the full Commission, meeting in regular
session.

2022 rev.



ROME POWERHOUSE ON THE SOUTH YUBA RIVER
The birth of Pacific Gas and Electric

Prepared for the Nevada County Landmark Commission
February 3, 2023



The Nevada “Rome” Power House -- the Birthplace of PG&E

Overview

The Yuba River system gave birth to the hy-
droelectric power industry in the late 1890’s as a
result of several factors coming together at the
same time —

** mine owners were in need of reliable and lower
cost power,

*+ the Pelton Wheel was invented in Camptonville
and first manufactured at Allan’s Foundry in Ne-
vada City,

*» existing mining ditches were idle or underutilized
and could deliver water,

** technology was being developed to transmit
electricity over wires to distant locations,

++ and most importantly, two entrepreneurs by the
names of John Martin and Eugene J. de Sabla
came to Nevada City.

Romulus Riggs Colgate became an in-
vestment partner with de Sabla and Martin and to-
gether they developed hydroelectric power
projects and acquired other projects throughout
northern California. Within ten years they con-
trolled the vast majority of all electric and gas sys-
tems in northern California, with the exception of
San Francisco. They then purchased the San
Francisco Gas and Electric Co., of which William
B. Bourn was president, and merged it with their
California Gas and Electric Co. to create Pacific
Gas and Electric Co. in October 1905.

And it all started in Nevada County! This ar-
- ticle will be the story of the Nevada Power House,
_ or, as it was affectionately known, the “Rome Pow-
erhouse”.

Early Mining Ditches

The first major mining ditch was the seven

mile long Rock Creek Ditch, constructed in 1850 to
take water from Rock Creek to Coyote Hill in Ne-
- vadaCity. The Rock Creek Ditch Co. is con-
. sidered to be the oldest entity on the PG&E
corporate family tree. Charles Marsh, a pio-
neer in water development in Nevada County, and

By A. Dale Johnson, © 2008, PG&E Retired

Birdseye View of Nevada “om” Powerhouse
— note flume at left center to low-head PH and
penstock from top of mountain to high-head PH

his partners built the Rock Creek Ditch for $10,000
and recovered it’s cost in 6 weeks from the water-
hungry miners.

The ditch business then became very com-
petitive! Rivals built ditches from Deer Creek to
Nevada City. Lawsuits about water rights led to
consolidations and the Deer Creek and Coyote
Water Co. in late 1851. Ground sluicing soon gave
way to hydraulic mining, which was first used on
Buckeye Hill by Anthony Chabot. One major com-
pany emerged in the Nevada City area, the Rock
Creek, Deer Creek, and South Yuba Canal Co., in
1854. The company name was shortened to South
Yuba Canal Company in 1870 and their office was
located in the historic building now occupied by the



Eugene J. de Sabla, Jr. was a descendent
of French nobility, born in Panama in 1865. He
was educated in San Francisco and then took a
course in assaying, where he met George Hearst
and others of Mother LLode fame. He started his
work life at a copper mine in Arizona, of which his
father was part owner. It was here, that he first met
Tregidgo. When the mine closed, due to falling
copper prices, de Sabla returned to San Francisco
and became a full partner in Eugene de Sabla and
Company, and managed the business. The finan-
cial panic of 1893 resulted in his decision to liqui-
date his father’s company.

John Martin,
Entrepreneur

Romulus Riggs
|_Colgate, Investor

John Martin was born in Indianapolis in
1858. He spent his boyhood in Brooklyn and since
age 13 fended for himself. After experience in Al-
abama real estate and working for Armour in
Chicago, he came to California. He worked for a
San Francisco coal importing firm for a time and
then established his own business, the John Mar-
tin Company, which dealt in pig iron. He was the
agent for the U. S. Cast Iron Pipe Company.

Romulus Riggs Colgate, born in 1858, was
a grandson of the founder of the Colgate Soap and
Perfume Co. The lure of the West was strong, so
he acquired gold-mining properties in Grass Valley
and Nevada City. As fate would have it, he became
an investor in the Nevada County Electric Power
Co. after accidentally meeting de Sabla as he was
on his way to the railway ticket agency. De Sabla
was going to New York to ask his grand uncle
Peter Marie de Sabla to invest. Colgate said “So,
you are the nephew of Uncle Peter Marie, | know
him and have dined at his home. But why go to
him for money? Maybe | can take his place!” Col-
gate then became a $40,000 investor for one-fifth
interest in the company. From that time on he be-

came a strong financial backer of hydroelectric de-
velopment.

Martin and de Sabla Become a Team

Tregidgo became part owner of the Peabody Mine
in Grass Valley, after he left Arizona. He had be-
come troubled by the high cost and inefficiency of -
steam power for pumping and other operations.
He then conceived of the idea of supplying electric
power to the mines from reading an account of
transmission of electric power from Tripoli to
Rome, ltaly, and after hearing of early experiments
in California. He decided to build a hydro plant on
the South Yuba River, to serve, not only his own
mine, but also others in Grass Valley and Nevada
City. By this time, he had hooked-up again with de
Sabla who had also acquired an interest in the
Peabody Mine. :

Late 1894 was the occasion when John
Martin was invited to a San Francisco luncheon by
a friend, Charles W. Randall, druggist and Mother
Lode mine owner. Randall had also invited de
Sabla, thinking that his friend, Martin might get an
order to supply pipe for de Sabla’s powerhouse
project. Mr. de Sabla indicated he was planning to
finance and build an electric plant on the South
Fork of the Yuba River, with his associate Mr.
Tregidgo. The three men talked of water, genera-
tors, and other aspects of the project. The Stanley
Electrical Manufacturing Co. was talked about as
making the best generators for their type project.
Martin did not ask for an order, as he had some-
thing else in mind........

It was, also, around this time that Martin
had become aware of the Stanley Electric Manu-
facturing Co. through a Mr. Lindner, an electrician
who had shown him a letter from the Stanley com-
pany. The letter authorized Lindner to sell Stanley
products on a commission basis. '

Martin, intrigued by the earlier luncheon
talk, went to Pittsfield, Mass. where he obtained
an interview with William Stanley, the inventor and
head of the company. Martin had no electrical
training, but he must have been very convincing,
because they gave him the California agency for
their products!

One day, two or three months later, Martin
and de Sabla encountered each other on Mont-
gomery Street in San Francisco. Martin said, “I'm



ready now for your order” and de Sabla replied,
“What order?” thinking that Martin had forgotten
all about their previous luncheon discussion.

Martin and de Sabla were then brought to-
gether into a remarkable team. They reportedly
reached their agreement while staying at Nevada
City’s National Hotel. The story goes that the busi-
ness negotiations took place in the hotel’s bar and
later in de Sabla’s office in Suite 74! Thus, it can be
said, that the National Hotel is the birthplace of
PG&E, because the agreement made there led to
a hectic 10-year period of development and ac-
quisitions, and the creation of PG&E in October
1905!

Nevada “Rome” Power House

The Nevada County Electric Power Co.
was incorporated on September 22, 1892, well be-
fore the historic Folsom project was envisioned
and decided upon. Officers included Tregidgo as
President, de Sabla as Vice-President and Fred
Searls, Attorney. A financial depression then put
the project on hold until 1895.

The diversion Dam for the first powerhouse
was located 3&1/2 miles above the power-
house on the South Yuba River.

The Nevada head dam, located about
1&1/2 miles above the Purdon Crossing, was
started on August 1, 1895 and completed within
four months. It was made of logs piled crib-fash-
ion, 28 feet high and 107 feet wide at the top. Be-
fore the cribs could be filled with rock and gravel,
the river began rising rapidly, stopping the work.
Fortunately, the “slickens” washed down and filled

every nook and cranny of the crib-work, packing it
solid with deposits, better than it could have been
done by the men! The head dam, years later, was
fortified with a granite wall on the downstream
face, 12 feet thick at the base and 2 feet at the top.

The flume, in itself a major project, was
started July 6 and completed by November 28,
1895. It was 6’ wide by 4 1/2’ deep, 3&1/2 miles
long, using 1,250,000 feet of lumber and 110 men
for four months. The flume had a gradient of 26 &
2/3 feet per mile and could carry 5800 miner’s
inches of water to the penstock above the power-
house site.

g e

This view frdrh the north side of the Purdon ‘
Crossing Bridge, shows the Nevada Flume on
the slope above it on the south side.

head dam of the Excelsior Ditch, which had been
installed 36 years earlier. This was a logical site
because the water diverted to the powerhouse
could be returned to the river without infringing on
the water rights of the Excelsior.

The site was in a beautiful narrow mountain
river canyon, but it was not a pretty picture from a
construction standpoint. The machinery had to be
brought in via rail to Nevada City from Colfax on
the Nevada County Narrow Gauge Railroad and
then hauled by wagon to the site.

The road above Nevada City had to be
widened and two additional miles built to a loca-
tion above Devil’s Slide. Six to 12 horse teams
hauled the machinery to the staging point at the
end of the road, which was about 1000 feet higher
in elevation than the powerhouse site. From there,
the equipment was lowered down the 1700 foot
slope, “Emigrant Gap style”, first on wagons, then
using heavy log sleds. The steepest slopes ranged
from 32 to 39 degrees. Generally, three 1&1/2 inch




manila ropes were used to control the load by
wrapping each several turns around a tree trunk.

The two Stanley generators, each con-
sisted of six pieces, with the heaviest weighing
11,200 pounds. The largest item in size was the
water receiver, which was 19 feet long, 4 feet in
diameter and weighed 4 tons.

The Power House was built on a solid gran-
ite shelf. The floor was 18 inch thick concrete an-
chored by 3%-inch rods, which were
sulfur-cemented into 18-inch deep holes drilled
down into the granite. The canyon was so narrow
that, the 10-bedroom boarding house was built on
the opposite side of the river and was reached by
a suspension footbridge.

The penstock was 298 feet long, with a
head of 190 feet. It tapered down from 48 to 44 to
42 inches to the receiver. The receiver delivered
water to the two sets of 2--34 1/2 inch Pelton
Wheels through 2--3 inch jets on each wheel.

The main electrical equipment consisted of
two Stanley generators, making 400 revolutions
per minute. Each generator produced 300 kilo-
waltts of two-phase, 133-cycle power at 5500 volis.

/"";.., § l‘s" : : j
This shows interior of powerhouse No. 1,
with two generators and two Pelton Wheels
powering each.

A wood pole line was constructed 8 miles
to Nevada City and Grass Valley, using 30 foot
poles with two cross arms and 8--No. 3 B&S bare
copper wires supported by triple-petticoat white
porcelain insulators. The pole line Right-of-Way
was cleared 60 feet wide.

On the business side, de Sabla had been

signing up customers in the mining districts and
his assistant, J. E. Poindestre, was soliciting or-
ders for electric lights from business firms and
owners of residences.

Technical problems delayed the successful
operation from December 1895 to February 1896.
But finally on February 5, there was success! As
reported by the “The Daily Transcript” the following
day “The electric lights of the Nevada County Elec-
tric Power Company were turned on at 6 o’clock
last evening for the first time and attracted con-
siderable attention. The lights were quite brilliant
and the office of the company on Pine St. received
many visitors. The lights were burned in Lane’s liv-
ery stable, the Morgan House at Grass Valley and
the company’s office, these being the only places
wired and connected thus far, but in a few days
many other business places and residences will
be connected and lights furnished them. The offi-
cials of the company felt very much pleased over
the excellent beginning made and promise that it
will not be long that power, as well as lights can
be furnished to all who desire it.”

Throughout the first phase of the Nevada
Power House project, Tregidgo was in charge of
construction, Martin handled the delivery and in-
stallation of the machinery, with much help from
Engineer E.E. Stark, and de Sabla brought in the
customers. Tregidgo continued as Operating Su-
perintendent until October 1896, when he left for
new adventure in Alaska’s Klondike gold rush!

The High Head and Lake Vera

But success created more demand! Plans
were made to provide additional capacity by utiliz-
ing South Yuba water, which got to the power-
house by a roundabout way. They would use water
delivered into the Rock Creek ditch via the South
Yuba Canal.

A 327 foot long by 54 foot high crib-dam
was started on March 1, 1898 to back-up water
into a partially excavated basin that had formerly
been the scene of hydraulic mining. It was com-
pleted in November. The new Lake Vera, named
after de Sabla’s oldest daughter, covered 42 acres
and could furnish a constant flow of 1000 miner’s
inches for 30 days.

The powerhouse was expanded by adding
a new building, just down stream from the existing



one. Two more generators were added, which
more than doubled the plant output.

The Lake Vera viaduct was 2&3/4 miles
long and had a gradient so gradual it took 1 hour
and 5 minutes for water to reach the fore bay. It
consisted of 2340 feet of flume, 11,400 feet of
ditch (most of it an old mining ditch) to a small fore
bay on the hillside, in the vicinity of the “staging”
spot for lowering equipment down the canyon.
Two thirds of the way along the way, the Meyers
Ravine required an inverted siphon to be used to
cross the gorge. The siphon was 36-inch pipe and
668 feet long.

At this point, it would be appropriate to dis-
cuss the question-- “Is it the Rome Power House
or the Nevada Power House?” John Martin had
this to say “ But it's a joke-- the calling of that little
plant the ‘Rome’ power house. It is the Nevada
powerhouse. The nickname came about in this
way: Romulus R. Colgate was associated with me
later in establishing the plant at Colgate, over on
the Middle Yuba. After that big one had been
named for him, some of us got to referring to the
little fellow over on the South Yuba as the “Rome”
power plant, “Rome” being the familiar shortening
of Colgate’s first name.” It is clear, however, that
‘Rome” became the name of choice and even
PG&E records use that name. And, after all “Isn’t
‘Rome’ a more romantic name for a power house
‘in the middle of no where' than ‘Nevada’?”

The Lake Vera Dam burst on April 2, 1905,
when a 29-foot by 30-foot section gave way, caus-
ing outflow that dropped water level one inch per
minute. At the time of failure the water was 52 feet
deep, two feet below the top of the 54-foot dam.
Workmen stopped the flow with wood and cement.
Afterwards, the dam operated with a 40’ foot
height and diminished flow capacity of 1000
miner’s inches for 10 days instead of 30 days.

The Lake Vera expansion became known
as the “High Head” plant, at 785 feet and the orig-
inal plant as the “Low Head” at 190 feet. In con-
junction with this, the ‘normal’ flow of the South
Yuba flume was reduced from 5800 to 3800
miner’s inches.

The Nevada “Rome” Power House oper-
ated 15 years, until 1910. It was shutdown, as ob-
solete, when the power on the system was

The Lake Vera Dam was originally 54 fe high
and it failed in early 1905, as this photo shows.

changed from two-phase 133-cycle to 3-phase 60-
cycle, the standard of today. This little plant long
ago was the start of something big and is consid-
ered to be the “birthplace” of PG&E.

So--it can only be concluded that the “vi-
sion” and the “seeds” of this great enterprise did
come from the Yuba River! A testament to this is
the fact that throughout PG&E'’s history, Martin and
de Sabla are referred to as the “Fathers” of PG&E.
Perhaps the Yuba River should be considered the
“Mother”!

About the Author:

A. Dale Johnson retired from PG&E in 1993 after
a 34 years with the company. He moved to Ne-
vada City in 1994 and since then has been study-
ing the water and electrical history of the Yuba
River basin. He has led numerous Treks or out-
ings for the Nevada County Land Trust and other
historical organizations. Treks have been taken to

* Yuba Powerhouse (1898)

* Nevada “Rome” Powerhouse (1896)

* Colgate Powerhouse (1899)—Trek this
year on October 25.

* Alta Powerhouse (1902)

* Historic Ditches of the South Yuba Canal

Company (1850 to 1900)

* Deer Creek Powerhouse (1908) — The
first Trek to this site will be this year on September
14 to celebrate its 100 year birthday.

He can be contacted at adalejohn@comcast.net
or 530-272-7039.
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Nevada “Rome” Powerhouse -- Technical Data
Generators -- 5500 volts @ 133 cycles, two-phase
Transmission - # 3 Cu, 5500 volts, 8 mi. to NC & GV
Total Capacity -- 1260 kilowatts
Operation from Feb. 5, 1896 to October 28, 1910

Powerhouse No. 1 -- Two 300 KW units, built 1895-97
Water Wheels -- Two 34 1/2 inch Pelton Wheels per unit
Water -- Diversion from So. Yuba via 3 1/2 Mi. flume
Dam -- Crib-style, 28 feet high by 107 feet long
Head -- 190 feet (known as low-head plant)

Powerhouse No. 2 -- Two 330 KW units, built 1898/99
Water Wheels -- Three 31 inch Tutthill wheels per unit

Dam via So. Yuba Canal, then Ridge Ditch into Rock Creek
and Lake Vera, then 2 3/4 mile ditch/flume/siphon.
Lake Vera - 42 acres, crib-style dam, 54’ high and 327’ long
Head -- 785 feet (known as high-head plant)
(An externally mounted 5’ 6” wheel was also installed on the
same shaft as the No. 1 generator, so it could operate from

either of the water sources.)
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Power was taken
to the Nevada
City Substation

.5

cingh, o
._‘ it

o

- t‘”"‘? Nevada “Rome” powerhouse was built to provide electricity to the mines of
Nevada City and Grass Valley. This is the Spanish Mine, owned by Romulus
Riggs Colgate, who was a part owner of the powerhouse.




‘YOTID3TLIOD TIN U4aH TOLJ BL0JO[4  “SUISSO) Ipwin uop
-ing 3yl aA0Q8 pIpRal 38U} 3UO SI[IW [ JWNI] B JO PUS I2MO[ ALY 3B JI3Yl0
sl pUB BIBA ays7 #0[3q Yd1Ip 243 JO pud 313 37 oU0 isysoisudd om] puy Iy
*$BIIITS Y3 UF $3uBTd O[JI309([2-01pAY IS41] 43 JO AUC SuM SIUL ~LUsuH Iy
311743TUMOg 8Yy3 Pass0id GOJTP 947 I3 9A0Q8 SI[IW b YDIIG JOTS[IOXF ayy
2a0(qs 38N I3ATY BQAL YINOS 3Y3 U0 HEFI UT J1I0g ° " " "3SNOH ¥IKOd AWOH FHL

S3NOI Lvd Ad
0181-01-G68I
w3N04. 0371V 3SNOHYIMOd ITLLIT V

6961 XHVINYCL I 'ON g2 "ToA

31908 BALOISTE Amog EpRASK

“jusw

I3jUTM 3Y3 U] puUB UOSBAS 3S[INOY 3y} 3urinp
usdp -A3TD ®PBAAN U WOESOW PUB A31[B/
LISIHXE ONINIW 53331905 [BOTl103STH 4£3un0) 1

£37D BPBA3N ‘887 "y UOLTTID
TN HELSTHD - ISTISIM A BIISOL - NVAIKTNL !
NISNVH FITYV - LLOITW@ IAIVIAY - 1

SYOLOTMIA 40 quvos

09LY-G9Z ‘O°N IS 3UId "N g0Z uosuyor ° 3I13Q’
9662-S9Z O °N POL x0g°0°'d Uedaal) "D pi
0£89-€LZ "A'D "3S §oIN®) °S g£0g 3unjIsy
8EPZ-G9Z DN "3S [eIolammo) ¥ZHZ SHOOIg 3310¢
G8IH-E£LZ "A'D SIE XOg °‘Z 2300y ‘saysh 'y

(XI3ID0s TYOTHOLSIH ALNNOO VAVASN JHI

1da0x2 qoowr Yoea jo LepsMmy], ISIJ S}23W KI21205 [edLn

£aep SSB3D 1S WAMYD YINoS gog 'Sumired 1oy

1034 Yo03 35| Auonuor 3jqoApg — 1094 Jad |

ALIIOOS TVIOIHOLSIH ALNNOD VAVAX
LSVd JDILNVINOY¥ ANV INVIYOdWI S.ALNIOD ¥l

N At R B ek i e . K B B PN N 8 A R o M

"SNY IHOLS I1H 338WENW
3HL AOFN3 OGNV SNIL31NZ 35351 H04
3HL NO 139 aNY OL3y3H IOV LY MNYTI

B-0-N AL3130S TYIIHOLS!E YOYAIN 3H

T s et B e B 9 e P 8 b bt

INOINYYM INVP AYVH SSIH
AV¥L "d T3INNWYVS

Ti13N.0 NYN SSIH

431404 °S Q34

11390Vd "M NON43A "da
AJTYOR "3 Y 773SSNY “¥d
NYOYON "M WYITTIM

LHDIRX 3INY34

LLIVAH "7 AYYVH

Eﬂv

el e . A kPl e A et A e S PPN it A

) maN

CLVEK pue dY(o
(

e T S paso{sus junowmy

‘SuUtgla(ing [BOLIOISIY
) Temauay

‘SUO17ED1UNWWOD puB S91JaudQ Y} [[E 07 dW d[F1IUI O PoOISIIpUN $1
(

‘ple) dyysaoquoy 5961 1ok jon
NGILYD 11ddY dIHSYIGWIK

:dIys1aqudw JeoA 3uo J0J 00 1% S1 posotoul

SSa4ppy
aure
'AL1D VAVA3N

00§ [BOMOSIE Anog epeay

‘S1BAA 9Al) 10] 00°6S -

vV INYO4 1Y)

Juipnjoul
diysaoquauw AR
soebe

£19




‘£3T) UPBASN WmOIJ 3SNOH JIam0d 9yl 03
A130T408W 807130372 13030 DPUB SIAWIOISURI] BUT[NBY

*ramodasioy
008 Arejswrxoxdde psdorsaap zazado;
sIO)BISUSE om] oYy pur 8R[ZZOU O}
DEY B[39ym USASS 3y} JO YORY  ‘aeyjo
843 uo Inoj puw Iojerouald ouo uy pesn
3Iam S[33YM UOj[ed 988l JO 98yl
‘s1esqm esmduag
UN3d 3100} 831yy 01 pajosuuod AQ3oslip
SBM YOBZ "S}I0A  00G‘S j¥ pajBIsusd
PUT 2I0UTM ¥ SUORINT0ABS 00 apRUL ADY T
"sicieraudd oddy 10jonpu ‘Kapueys aseyd
~0M3 91080 ¢El ‘Nvaolpy 00€ oM} 2iIoMm
I3y uope[rEIsul [BUIBlIO By} Jog
‘Juswdmbe
3y syBrado 03 umop IsjEm swmnp £xred
O} osnoyramod ay; saoqs BpE 2y} o3
P3J20YouB puB pre] axam sadid I318m
*I9ALL 3Y] S50108 sSupppmq omg ay; psjosu
-uod adpjaq uosuadsns vy ‘uresiys ayj
Jo ap1s 3yysoddo ayy uo psosid 8q 03
Pey ssnoy Bujpivoq sy jey; jusid ayj
10y yo paddods ussq peay 18y} a8pa
8y} £q papord sem woor 9[3IH oS
*sue}sdso sB pasn
dram sdumis 9913 93187 *sIafjox 3ot uo
Pajmow sspiis uo [y umop AIsupoBwW
2IEN{EA DY) POIDMO] A{yalso SISMBY
AABDY puUY Sa[qro oIS Wi U2 *spunod
00T’ R pondipa rojuraund youy
‘esnoytamod ayy as0qe apiis ayy Jjo a3pa
2u1 01 dn AxsuwsBW Jo §2001d Aavay ayy

mey 0} pasn axam ‘sasIoy zI jo 3upsis
=000 way) Jo Ausir ‘sursay 31g *pasoadu]
puB £308[d U] PIUSPIM BQ O} DPBY DPEBOI
Jo s 231y} ‘sus asnoyrsamod ayy o3
peMmey 8q pmod juswdmba 3y} arojeg
“«{omb axayy jad,, jo adyourad ay; uwo
1mq aIam speox 3y} afep Supw A(rese
sy} u] ‘speol ucdsm plo JIsso payIod
~SUBI} 3q 03 pBY 3] 431D BPEASN WOIJ
*23enD MOLIBN A3uno) BpBASN
8y Aq 370 ®BpEASN 0] UaY} PUB XBI[OD
03 [}81 £q 03 0 PBY JUB]d I3MOJ EDBASN
943 107 pasn 3q 0} AIBUYOBW BY) IV
‘uopBIado s}
Jo srsak oMy 38y oY) Jo} asnoy Jamod a3
0} 1338m Jo A1ddns [M] 3y} sem SIYL
*Iaquinj jo
1897000052 IPasN pUE UsW Q[ Jo 90I0f B
300} UDPONIISUCO 8] *deap 399} /I ¥
DU 2DIM }99] XIS SBM QUM Yyl "YI8Z
19quoAON paja[dwod sBm PuB GE81 jO
AMp Uf PeyIEIE BUM[ AU} UO HIom
‘PrIOS payored
sea AUUBIO PUB YUO AIaam  -woay)
I0; qof ?y} PP SaUjW OMBIPAY WOy
WEBaJIls jusmqany syj umop Jujysem sus
~3OHS “IaR2q sEm ON[ 8yj awy S|y
*108{oxd ay3
UOPUBQE 0} USWNIOM P3DICY IBA[X BY) U]
9811 pydel Sy [ °pawoop aq 0} paseadde
wep 3y} ‘JSE[Eq [2ABI3 DUE OOX M
P31 3q PMOD SqId 3y arojeq ing

(*e0®y
Nwesd 8 WM PIPRIO SBM 3] SIEAL
19781 U]) "SSOIOE 399] 40] PSINSEAW pUB
U3y 199F 87 SBM 3] ‘I9ANI By U oOI
~Paq 0 ATLIY Pa}[Oq SBM }| DUB UOWSEY
-qi10 papid 301 jo sem wEp SpyL
‘0% JaquasoN pajadurod sem 3 puw
S681 ‘118n3nV payIeIs sBM wEp Iayjous
juspunjuiradns s3] s® o3pidorl paxjly
pu Ausdwo) oja308[T Auno) wpBAaN
2y Jo Jo8svUEW SB "I BIGES 9D QMM
‘123em Y31y Aq Aemw jdams sem
wep 813 2681 Jo Bujxds ay3 up ‘ysssmoly
‘waysds aump pus ysp B J0] apBW
aIam suopesedard pue eqni ynog ay;
$80108B3[Ing SeM STO[ JO urep ® [gg[ UL
“asnoytamod B I0] payIBWLIBD
§8M J0dS B WEIIISUMOP JOY}In] sSa[jur
891y} JNOQR pUB WEBP B JOJ 911§ B JO
UOR3[as 8y} pspniou] sueld -palinboe
SIam ®BQnL @nog 9y; woaj yop 4q
I97BM 9B} 03 83U I93BM pu® pum]
“Saujw ayj jo uoyjsrado [BOjWOUODS II0OW
10} Tamod 91130919 383 0} SnO[XUE S15M pue
A1[80o0] m3s2133Uy Sujujr paumo yjog
*a8py
-3ax] ‘v 'v pur so8j1dIaua 2j1309[304

) Sdmog vt epraan A gooauepd EPEAIN i duy
St st =2 wpes op f auaduyy puc *(ap) wads Suru

¥ dulangnsuns
A}y asuoppy

-pAY jo juswdoraaap ay; G P3)B[OOSSE
£[es010 wBW JayjouE ‘*Ip ®BIQES 9p “p
3uadnyg 03 P93 [Pao ussq SBY Julg Iamod
BPBABN 83 JO UOJIBIID 9] X0F BOD] By,
*1omod OFI309[30IPAY Jo IayoEQ Juoays
B SWEBO3q pu® A}]0 BPWASN puv Aa[[BA
Ssexd up sepyadoxd Sujuiwr paamnbos
ol *Ausdwo) sumirag pue deog 3388100
343 30 13punoy 9y3 Jo uospueid ‘sjesio) -y
SNNWOY IOf PIWEBIDOI OF SBM [ “JUB[]
I8mod (3WwoYy,, 3y} SB UMowy| A[uowuwoo
dIoW SB¥AM 3] ING JUB[J JIIMOJ BPBASN
3yl pawrsu sem jueld oyl AI[B[opI0
*fusdwo) o109y
pu® SBD OQJOoBd WISpPOW 3y} JO 5I0}S3O
~-ug Ausw sy) jo auo ‘Aurdworn Ismod
A3umo) speasN Y3 jo snajonu ay) sem i1
"B3.B 9y} U S9UjW Yo1x AUBW jo jusudo
~[9A3p [801.130318 aYy a1qissod aprur 3]
“BUOSEIL OM] IO
£3umo ) epeaaN jo L1038y ay3 uj jueiroduay
S} I94TH BQNA YINOS 3y} JO YIBW Iajem
Y31y ay3 sa0qE }8n{ 38103 343 JO3pJs ay) 03
Sunyo 20uo 38y} ssnoyaamod [rews v

00211309 PUB SBY 23108 8Y) Aq pap]
~aoxd [BlI91BU pUR 301y OJYdIy 4q 6061
Ul USyiIm juBld Iamod BPBAIN oY) Jo
L1038 B wouaj sauop 18d 4q psndwoy)



‘103pd ‘99T ‘H ‘0

*13ATH
BQRA Ynos ayy uo 3ujssol) wopind pue
3ussod) 8,}A0H UaaMIIQ BB 0} PIIIJYII
A[[e0[I0}8 Y 8] UOPBOOY AUL ‘6% KemyBiH
uo a8pHg BQnA {NOS 93 WoJtj wreaxysdn
3up{iy £q I0 pPBOX [[JH jUOWAD 3@ F¥lA
8] pOUOpUBQR Mou 918 9snoy Jamod a3y

0} 88320y 431D EPBASIN JO Yjaou sajw
M9 ¥ BaJB [BUORESIDAI B MOU ‘BISA
9B WOoIJ A[13}9aMIIOU SI[JW 231} SBM
asnoyzamod amoy 3Y3 JOo ANIS YL 2661
uj paysyiqnd "gRD°d oW jo AI0iS [BRUd
-3u3)) 3y} WoJ} paonposdar axam saamold
eyy pue YSHd “d “M 4q g681 u paysiand
Ma1AsYy Juuiy Ao EpBasN 9y} wolj
gayB) SBM TORBIUSWMOOP 34a04® 3YL

MEHLIHY ONINIIV ALNDOD FOFAHN

PRGN 3] 1A SIDEITUCT [N jey) u2a13 aq [ aduerend v Puv
30ua 38 apem aq ued samod 105 suonesyddy  -oaswueny ueg jo ‘uEASH
WM Puu JUnR N Aupuy 'MOSSt "D ‘g A\ CSISS2IY 2B nononas
-10D jo s1oauldua 31, ‘suval 12ULI0] M1 UMOP RS 07 sauiwr ino paiad
SHIOD SABY UDLm HIITULM 42205 NP L PIIDAYE 3q JOU {[LA puE ‘s1tOSeds
e Auunp sanue 3] o) payddns pur pameiqo aq ued somod jemadiad
v up el Hutag axv jeiy snsom pEruesgns {194 31 yum papdnod et
2nurrend £ 51 AU MOUS N[} MOy {[2M Furde o ‘osnory 1amod a1y
I9apa) oO% 1 PLE WRD BYLIC 1033 O0L'1 JO HONBADA UL JABI S$NI0M B[

puvosf 3yl wo Buinq mou ‘swo) uany IHOQE 'D4tw Ay (g ‘parapdmos
Alpider Bulaq oS{¥ §] NOIPMISIOD duy| 3jod a1y, ‘pdadx3 LAnep 21w pue
Ussef ‘praysiiid e ‘syIom owndsg As(umig oty wolg paddiys uaaq aaey
s:101e13aad 313 jO MIOY  “IINQ SPIN{I-0M] IDA0 ST wny} 3y phe Lem Japuu
[[oM St wep 2], "123qo0Q) jO yiuout 3y Snunp eid anjus 3y jo uon
-21dnod 21y asnsur 03 s jutod ¢ yons o3 passaxiosd sey yIom g3 (S6g: g

pqudag) Supua jussaad 2y v

‘Luedu1od () A PITDILUOT S¥DN

-1suq AuE 10 10 13:m0d jo Suiysiung 1)} J0) SIPVINOD J0F IPTUL I PINOYS
uopeoydde woyxn o3 “aBvuvus jrasudd pue juapsasd-adia “uf ‘oiqug
apr [ o1 pue Livpaoos ME« 12105834y ‘Mmoidy vy D qudpsoad i 10SIDL]

IV CHIAL IUIPUIIHLINC

as JUNYD Y M S Y TNNOY EPraAdN

Jo ‘ofnRary cjy pun ‘odspuuiy ueg jo “xf ‘v|qeg 3P °| g puw uosidi g
I WAL C‘HospaR(l ([ 'M01) 'y ‘D :3u Lueduiod 3ty jo si033.1p
L AamsA2 punoy 3q vt B SIUT} 1{ONS JB 03 PIPPE 3q {{Im 3837} pucT
CX[AImIpPAIIUI PI[[BISTL 2 {[EM SIOPMIUDT 19m0d-3510Y-PIIPUNI-OAG OML
*PIUINIQO K| UED I23) 00T IJA0 JO {[B] B JA3Ym 'DUWNY Y] jO PuUI Jamol A}
MO|aq '13AL1 21[} MO PIIEDO] 2q {IM dsnoy samod 2y, “1omod-asiof ooo't
jnoqe juusuBl} pue 23213033 03 WAy 3qBua [[im ‘Savy (1w Lusdmod sy
18] 33 s g3 ‘smpem Jo saupul 0oo'y Juidred jo sjqeded ‘dedp 193]
Ay purapin199) X15 18ua] ur 339y oob'gr 3q [{Iw JmMny YL IDGWIAON
JO 1Siy AN} 210j2q IwiN} 3tmos ‘Jamod wuNS 10 ISOD [} JIBH -0 1HOYE B
aamod ysiing 0} ApEa2 2q 1A pue ‘miny puB EP 543 SUIPHNG AI0M 1B
uat jo 3210 a818] L13a ® puy svy Ausdinod oyy sesodund Zonudy pus
a3mod 10j pasn 3q 0} 213Y] "A3[[A SsuID pus A1) EPEASN 01 papumsusiy
3q 03 391019919 Aunessuad jo asodind 2y 10 BqRA HINOG 243 Jo siajkm
a1 1aalpoist Luvduiod ot jo 39afqo agy -peoy mEn{ Mg gUION Y3 uo
‘4310 BPBAAN DA0QE S XI5 121y BQUA INOG ay) jo Juissela smopiang
28au pa1edo] 2ue fundmod IY) JO SHI0oM YL, TOISIDUBI] UBR JO SUIZIUD
uUMmOoUY IS O] JO S1TOS LB SIIPIOINRI0IS S Sooms pus ‘zbQI ‘0T 13q
-maydag pajusodiosur sem Luedmod s1q]  "uoiiBi0diod PIMYU-IA0QE Y3
&g pasamaoy paysnd Suteq eyl nuwyy udm Jurunm

3O spuey 3} 1B UNLIBIIPISTOY Jo qiiom ucik st "0 YAMOJ DIULIITI

suou ‘183 ) Aulinp ATUNOD RPBAIN Ul PIIRL

ALNNOD VAVAGN

-nnsor sasudinnd LAmiom ALupw ay; Suocimy

*ggél *oul ‘Awedwo) jood IIIH
MBIDOK ‘uswa[o) "W So[rey) Aq Ausdwx
-0) JOIXJVOIT puUB SBDH OpPI08d jo AI03S
[BIUU}UE) YL SB[WIOJ[BD JOo °“HR'D'd
psax Jomod Oolnoe[ecIpAy jo juswdord
-A3P 3} 03 WORNQLITOD #,£3UN0D BPBASIN
jo L1038 3URBUIOSB} 8XpUe aq} I0J
“339108q0
amooaq SujaBy ‘Qlg] Ul S0JAIes WOIJ
PSIRaX SBA JUB[d Jamod BPBASN 9UL
*Aumedwo) 213091 F PUB 58D
oQI08d 94} JO [0UOO 9Y} JIJpuUn SWBD
uopeIodIOd ST 9061 ‘Z AIBnuUEL O
‘uopEI0dI0) OI}03[d pUB FBD
BJLICH[BD @Y} 03U} padIomwl 3Iam BISRO
@ suossassod s1f TSYM 06T ‘T YOTBA
mun mexd 106l Ul sarwedmod Ajmnod
BQNX PUB BPEAONPOUIQWIOdSY] £q POULIO]
Auedwo) Jamog sopumo) A=g o4l
*303fo1d IBg SPIBINE W3 PUE
Koualy 1a18p £3un0) BN 24} T3 £[snoj
~a2xd sI1Bak omy pauldys Juswaa1de UB JO
JMS3aI B SB g6l 3uUjINp paucpuUBgE SBM
M °6¥61 U paoepdes puB gpgl Ul AN
£q paSswep sem juerd 3383100 o4l
cxamod d1x309[3
-OIPAY Y3 BaIy ALBg OOSJOUBIJ UBS
24135 0} asnoyzamod 3831 3Y3 SEM 3
*6681 ‘¢ Joquajdas uopsrado uy paowid
sem 8y} Ausdwo) OWII03IF BQNL Y3
jo juvld Jomod E310D Y} SUIIDUOD
JuBjiepis JuBOUUBE A([EOMIOISIY VY
“Ausdwo)
Iamod sepuno) Aeg oy jo Supuupdaq
apy wrxoy o) Ausdwo) Iamod BQRX 9Y3
[P paujquiod Ausdwo) Jamod Lunod
®pEASN 3@ 0061 ‘I Jequaydes wo
“UOBBaJ JaYj0o aWoSs
X0} Paso[o J[9S}] SujW Iy} SsI[Un 38N
8} pouopueqe J249 Jomod O[I103[3 9yE}
0} I0joW B PI[[LISU] }BY} JUIW ON
*}01I1S|p BPBASN 3y} U] J93UB
-junopy 9 Aq udyy pue PSP A3BA
S$§BID 9 TP IWS YIION 9y pus gousy
UOSHIV 2 *Yommsunig sy} ‘Bjusa[4is
-uuad oy} Aq pamoI[o} 3Iam A8yl
“Jemod oy asn 03 1811}
Y} SI9Mm }OJIJSIP BPEBASN oY) U] saujwr
1TIH PI[OD 3y} pue punog pIemdwoy FHIL
‘JOXM Y], °*SISUWOCISND IO B3IR 9y 3uj
-SEBAUBD SBM "I B[QES 3P S[JUMUB3
*juapuajuydns Supexado 3813
s Aueduroo ay) sBm oymo3p8ax J P3IfIV 03
1J31 SBeAm W[ pue WBp 3JYj JO UORINI:S
-uod 3wl lo uojsiazadns fBNdOE YL

*Auedwo) Sujanjoenuey [8BO}I3091:
Aaueis ay} 1oy juade BUIOJ[[BD ‘URJel
uyop 0} UIAI3 SEM JUE ,BWOY,, PUuE
aumij 3y ‘sqnx YInoS ay} uo wrep 3y
JO UOTIONIISUCD 3Y] 10§ JOBIIUD YL

*paddoap axB] ayy jo A3oeded
3y} puB I3MO] 333] [ INOQe SBM WEp 3Y)
Iredax 833 IV *ABm 9aBI vIap 9yB]
uo urep 3y} jo jxed B ‘506l ‘g [[dy uO

~jue(d [euid[Io 3y} Ul PA[BISU] S[IYM
ssmdwy (BuUORPPE o3 adid [8338 Youj g
® UMOD JOYS I2)Bm ABQSIO] 9y wWOIJ
*38NOYISMGI BPBASN
a2y} 2A0qQ® IPISIIY 9Y} Uo ABGSIOJ [[BWS
® 0} S3[JW p/E ¢ JO SDUBISIP B IIPBM
89381 9Y3 A2AUOD 0} }[INQ SBA 1ONPBIA ¥
*8I93U3nEp *8I( BIQES SP JO
QU0 I0J BI3A 3YB] PoWBU SBM S3I08 Zp
A1oyewxoadde Jo ®aI® I1j0AI983X SWL
*y3Lz JoquaaoN poroidwoo sem 31
*83ui33p
OJMBJIPAY JOo JUad8 3y} Usaq PEY IBYY
UJSBQ Pa1BABIX3 A[[BPIed B poO[y O} X331
o0y Ul P3)IEI8 SBM S80JOE }99] LgE PU®
Y37y 193] $S WEP QLID ¥ ‘868l ‘I YIIEW
uQ °popodu FBm A)1oeded aToW UIAT
“SI834 39JY) 10} 3] pajeIado pue jusld ay}
peseyoand Auwsdwo) lamod Ajuno) epE
-A9N 943 9681 Ul °4A3[0}X309[0 J0] pUBWIP
Bupmolasd ay) 393 0} ¥ISID I3 UO I[NQ
sem jusld OpIjOS[30IpAY Ja8iv] VY
*Auedwod 9}I308[® pus S83 IOpIO UB JO
peoy ‘uossB[D uyop o 3] PIOS I93B] SH
*A310 BpBASN 24198 0} I0jBIaues posamod
Iojem [rews ® Supeiado weSasq Jadss)
Z681 Ul °193IiS auld UO SEm SSIUISNQ
agoym jueyoIaw Suyiofd £}}D ¥PBAIN
8 ‘xadse) IIseM AQ paumo woysds ®
Aq payy3ir sxam A31D BpBASN puB AB[[BA
858ID “4{mq 3utaq sea yueld ayy oM
*Ausdwo) 300 3y} Aq paxnjoeyn
~uBW 8X0J8MSTY UFB[3210d 3 yMm JBOoORYad
-91d 1 [3M SWIIBSS0ID IaM WA UO
*pasn 3I9s punols ay3
2a0qe 3933 0 3uispx pue KBMm—Jo-3g37I
2y} WOJ} NS 83[0d "SPIM 199 9 ABM
-Jo=-jy311 pP3IBAO B U} UBI U STYL
°A310 ®pBASN 0} qOUBIQ ABMpIW B
Bupasy pus £2[[eA SSBID 38 Sujpus Bujl
a1od arrw yB1e ue 0} asnogramod aq jo
pue oy} Y3noIyj N0 PIIIBD 2IOM SIUT]
288yd OM3 3y} PIBOQUIIMS 8Y} WO
*sj}I0MaIg Jo sAvIdsIp auUy
paplacxd pus paIrs} S89WRLAWOS 43y) Ing
IMOIO 3y} ¥Baxq 0} pasoddns axem Aayqr
*813}BaIq JMOI[O ORvmONE * 1pE-mado
JO Pp338I8UOD pIEOQUANMME I8IY IQL



“jusiuiodde £g

493UTa 34] U] pUB UOSEAg 3614805 343 BulInp L[IBInSas

Jadg 431D ©pBAdN UT ARESHN Pum L2]IBA SSBIP OI
LISIHE DNINIR $9738700S [80TJI038Ty £3uN0) spsasy S4L - LISIA

£70 BpEASN ‘097 "y UOITITD :J03TPR} WI3ATINg
TER WIST - STESSE "M HIZSOr - NVAARIYL NHOC - SINOC NGB
NISNVH SINHV - ILOI'TRE SAIVEEQAY - CONIIRISH TREVSI

SYALOIA 40 quvoed
09Lb-G6Z "N °3IS eUld °“N Z0Z WOSUGOr ] 3I8qIV :3USpISeld 3SBd
86882-G92 O °N POL X0g°(°d Du8351]) "3 pPOIJIUIR [Iaanswaxy
0£88~81Z "A™D ‘38 ﬁ.::wn ‘S £0¢ 2unjlsy IOMISH :AIm1a1038

6EVC-SC ON (13 TBIOI0mXX) 3zbz BR001g 951099 11USpISAld 201A
SBIP-ELC AD 8I€ Xog g 33noy ‘sejen 'V 349Q0H juapysard

‘ALIIO0S TVOTYOLSIH ALNNOO VAVASN BHL S0 SYHOTLI0 6961

“sndny puw £mr ‘sun
360X3 TUOW Wes Jo AGPSMAL ISIF NI KJOOS [SILSTT KITNOD CPOASN S
£oT[RA $5B3D 1S YRINYD [WNOS £0g ‘SUMIRH I3TIST 03 00'1$ PURS
1034 Yo02 Js| Auonupg ajqoAoy — o3k sad 1$ Auo diysiaquiayy

ALIIDO0S TVOINMOISIH ALNAOD VAVAIN TH.L NIOS
LISVd DILNVAOY ANV INVINOJW! S.XLNNOD HNO FTANISTNI OL JT3H

S e N Al St AP Kl Sl et k. ek o B N et e, el B P B et et

e

"SNV 140LS |H ¥38WaW 40 dI1HSMOTI134
JHL AOCN3 ANV SNIL3TTINE 3S3HL ¥04 L1SIT ONITIVW
3HL NO 139 OGNV 01343H Q3HOVLLY XNv18 3JHL NI 7114

A-0-N ALI1J0S TVIIHOLSIH VOVAIN 3HL N1Of 431138

INOINYVM INVP AYVH SSINW
AJV¥L °d T13NWVS

11300 NYN SSIH

431304 °S Q3y3

11390Vd "M NONY¥3IA “¥ua
A3TYOM °3 °V 773SSNY ¥4
NVDUOW “M WYVITTIA

AHOINN 3N¥3d

LIVAH "7 A¥Y¥VH

§ ‘@




el ] N PSS
~ppofy W —avolf
Grpuooggeeszy 9/







Special to the Union. =
NEVADA CITY (Nevada Go.),
29.—Yesterday the Rome power i}
was closed after a continuous run o
fifteen years, and it marks an® Inter
ing epoch In the electrical developm
of California. It is a matter of
eral knowledge that the Rome p
house was the first power plant ef’
pretensions in the state; and th
that it has heen closed and w
he dismantied adds a chapter
mpld dovelopment of eleé
means of power.
This power house was
by John Martin, the well
itallst who was\at tha'“ ,
the Stanlev El rica

pany with Eugem De%abla he CH
the idea of building the power
and Alfred Tregidgo sold the
after organizing the company: Tre
received a large block of the stock
his services and might have b
wealthy if he had not digpo:
Martin and DeRabla from the smal
ginning at the Rome power house bullty
up the immense concern that
developed into the Bay (,onntlem :
company and the Pacific Gas and Ele
tric company. ‘
Under the new qvetom of tmnsmit
ting power. which went juto effect yess: !
terday when the system was changed
over, power may now be transmitted
t‘rom any one plant to another by n.
simple process. ‘I'he plant in Butte
county may be called upon to t’um!slr;
lights for the other countles if the Col-
gate plant is out of commission, or the
plant in Amador county may he used it
the Butte plant and Colgate plants are :
wrong. In this way it is a great
venience and means a great cdeal to tha
company'.
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EJVHE Company is duly organized under the Laws of

the State of California._ . .o

e

CAPITAL, = = $500,000.
100,000 Shares, = - = = $5.00 each.

© oy i Qi e

BOARD OF DIRECTORS :
War. M. PrersoxN, Esg., San Francisco.
D. B. Davipsox, Esg., San Fraucisco.
C. A. Grow, Eso., San Francisco.
E. J. pE SaBLa, Jr., EsQ., San Francisco.
ALF. A. TrEGIDGO, Esp., Nevada County.

ATTORNEYS FOR THE COMPANY:
Messrs PrersoN & MrrcHELL, San Francisco. FrRED. SrarLs, Nevada City.

ENGINEERS OF CONSTRUCTION :
W. R. EcgarT, C. & M. E. W. F. C. Hassox, E. & M, E. Axprew M. Hunt, E. & M. E.

Office of the Company, Room 8, 40 California St., San Francisco.



Proposed Plan.

3

It is proposed to dam the South Yuba River, and divert the water at the dam site, and construnct an
agueduct capable of carrying 4200 miner's inches of water, on a grade of ten feet to the mile, for a distance

of three miles. ) ) .
This guantity of water, under a head of 250 feet, will give 2500 h. p. on Pelton wheels, which

it is estimated will be quite sufficient to supply all future demand. The pipe to COIl\Fé)’ the water from
the penstock at the end of flume to the receiver at the power house will be made ac.:cordmgly. ‘

Of the 2500 available h. p. at the power house, it is proposed to tra1.1s1'mt 550 to Nevada City
and Grass Valley immediately, and to generate and transmit the remainder as it is demanded.

BOND ISSUE.
The Company is duly authorized to issue $200,000 of 20 year 7% 1st mortgage construction honds.

TRUSTEE. = '
Mr. D. B. Davidson is the Trustee for the bondholders until such time as the plant is in operation,
when the Trustee will be the Union Trust Company of San Francisco.
AMOUNT OF BONDS FOR SALE.
In order to carry out the proposed plan of construction, $60,000 is required. 'The Company propose
to sell $60,000 of these bonds at par.

DENOMINATION OF BONDS.
Bonds will be issued of such denomination as will meet the requirements of the subscribers.

PROSPECTUS OF NEVADA COUNTY ELECTRIC POWER COMPAXNY, 9

SUBSCRIPTIONS TO BONDS.

Subscriptions for honds will be received by the Trustee, D. B. Davidson, Esq., at the Nevada Bank
of San Francisco, until July i1st, at noon. The full amount, viz., $60,000, must be subscribed before
any bonds are issued or payment demanded.

BONUS.

A bonus of 500 shares of the Capital Stock of the Company will be given to each pur-
chaser of $1000 of bonds.

PROFIT TO STOCKHOLDERS.

After having made the power available to generate 2500 h. p. at the power house, the profit
on the transmission of 550 h. p. to market will be as follows: taking as a basis that the Company dispose
of that amount for one-half what it costs the consumer at present for steam power :

550 . p. at §75 per annum, - - - - - . - 41,250 00
Running expenses, - - - . 3 . $10,000 00
Wear and tear, - - - B . - - 1,000 00
Sinking fund, 5%, - - . - 3,000 00
Interest, 7%, - - E - - - . 4,200 00
Extras, taxes, etc., - - - - - - 1,050 00

i 19,250 00

Profit on the sale of 550 h. p., - : - - - %22,000 00

Dividend to stockholders on the sale of 550 h. p. 15t vear, - . - 20¢. per share
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6 PROSPECTUS OF NEVADA COUNTY ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY.

(or 4800 cubic feet), having been always full and a large quantity overflowing their dam. By referring to
the cut showing the Company's proposed power house, it will be seen that our water is returned to the
River above the Excelsior Company’s dam,

PROPERTY.

The Company own 400 acres of land, situated on the banks of the South Vuba River, through
which the aqueduct will pass, and over this property the county road from Nevada City to Sierra County
crosses. Nevada City is connected by rail with the Central Pacific at Colfax, thus facilitating transporta-
tion to the works.

REPORTS.
Reports have been made by prominent engineers upon this enterprise, and can be seen, with ac-
companying maps and diagrams, at the Company's office.

MARKET FOR POWER.

The amount of power now in use in the mines of Grass Valley and Nevada City is estimated to be
in the vicinity of 2500 h. p., of which about 1000 h. p. is generated by steam, the balance by water power.
In addition to this tlhere are at present idle a large number of mines which are unable to work ou account
of the high cost of power generated by steam, and that are so situated that they cannot use water to ad-
vantage. ‘The amount of this idle power is estimated at about 1500 h. p., of which the greater part will
take advantage of the introduction of electricity.

It will be seen by reference to the accompanying diagram the great advantage of the Company's
location, as from the dam to the power station, a distance of three miles, the natural bend of the river
is southerly, thus saving 7Zzo miles in the length of the wire, and consequently shortening the distance
that the power is to be transmitted.

PROSPECTUS OF NEVADA COUNTY ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY. 7

The course of the pole line is designated by the line starting at the power station, and running to
1, thence 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7.

Each square in the diagram represents a section one mile square.

1. Group of mines on Deer Creek, one-half mile west of Nevada City, comprising the Nevada
City Mine, Wyoming, Spanish, Champion, Merrifield, Home, Mountaineer, Providence, etc,, etc. This
will be a distributing point, and from it will be switched sufficient power to supply Nevada City with
electricity, and mines east of Nevada City.

2. Town Talk Summit being the Iighest point on the high-road between Nevada City and Grass
Valley, also the summit on the N. C. N. G. R. R. Here will be erected a so-arc light dynamo to light
with electricity the Nevada City and Grass Valley wagon road, and from this point power will be trans-
mitted to the Gold Flat, Merrimac and Pittsburg mines.

3. 'The Idaho, Maryland group of mines.

4. The Empire, W. Y, O. D. and Pennsvlvania group. From this point power will be trans-
witted to Osborne Hill, Conlan, Laffayette, Centennial, Green Mountain and other mines, taking in all
properties lying in a southeasterly direction from Grass Valley.

5. The Omaha and Lone Jack group. From this point power will be distributed southerly to the
celebrated Allison Ranch Mine, taking in the Illinois, Wisconsin, Hartery and other mines,

6. 'The North Star Mine.

7. The Peabody Mine, taking in on its route the Rocky Bar, New York Hill, Hudson Bay,
Tribute, Massachusettt Hill, Stockbridge, Scadden’s Flat and Gold Hill. From 7 the line will pass

" through Grass Valley townsite and return to 1, thus completing the circuit and. taking in a market for
. power that is unsurpassed in the United States at so short a distance from the point of generation.
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VIEW 1.
Shows the South Yuha River at extreme low water. This is the location where the dam will be consirncted and the
water turned into the flume.

PROSPLECTUS OF NEVADA COUNTY ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY.

BONDHOLDERS’ EARNINGS.

B §

Dividend of 20c. on 500 shares,

# 5 $100 00
Interest on $1000 bond at 7%, -

- - 70 00
making an income ou a $1000 investment of -
hesides having

- - $170 00 per annum, or 17,
500 shares of the Capital Stock that will yearly be increasing in value,

SURPLUS.

The Company holds $140,000 of bonds in trust, to be disposed of when it is deemed necessary or
advisal

ble to increase the capacity of the electrical transmission, thus providing against any assessment
and insuring regular dividends.

e

Cost of IMaterial and Construction in Detail.

DAM.

The dam will be made of logs securely bolted to the bed rock, and constructed with an overhang-
ing crest. ‘The object of this dam is not to store water but to divert it from its natural course and turn
itinto the flume. The site is so favorable that a good substantial dam could be properly built of logs,
and the entrance to flume well protected, for - - c 2 $3000.
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The Old Nevada County Electric Power Company
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A, A, Tregidgo Eugene de Sabla, Jr,
A. M. Hunt E. B, Stark

NI Jno, Martin

nsl :

on Grass Valley and Nevada City, a distance height is to be twenty-seven feet and ten inches,

#boat six and one-half miles. The central and The remainder of the work will be pushed to a
" st puint of this line is scarcely five miles from  rapid completion.
gowrr slation and the line is practically a con- STOCK, ETC. e ?

200 n of the one running to the mines near

,|‘ b City. The capital stock is $500,000 divided into 100,000
ihow .

N 1« zre at present two pelitions before the Board  shares, $50 e’ac}r——all to be fully paid up.
gt The total investment it is estimated will be about

wrvisors for franchises to construct tramways
%+ «ounty road between the two towns. Either
lines will be but four miles in length, and
#wwratmy Company will depend upon this Com-
for power, ‘

$300,000; and the net income is estimated at $140,-
000.

The facts that the power exists—the demand for
it is at hand—that the distances are small requiring
comparatively small expense for copper, together with
the permanency of the water power, renders this a

PRESENT COST OF POWER,
most advantageous investment.

«t generated by water costs from $100 1o
B s 11 P per annum. When generated by
s o costs $150.00.

+ requiring in the aggregate 1,250 H. P. that
%4 worked profitably with power not costing  to learn, and eventually get on steady at one

§% Dan 390 per Horse Power, per annum, are of the water power plants: Do you know
?""" wdle. what a heavy short does at the Rome Power
House?"”
Second operator: “No. What does it

“Saely after organization the Company com- do>"
srection of the dam on the South Yuba

TR

First operator to second, who is ambitious

G s

e

WORK NOW IN OPERATION, .

First operator: ‘“‘Makes Rome Howl, of

dam is to be fifty-seven feet long at the course.”
wd one hundred and fifty-one on top. Iis T. E. FocaLsanc,

61
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